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RE: 

Eileen Sullivat1. Direclor 
Investigative and Enforcement Services 

Elizabeth Theodorson, DVM 
Assistant Deputy Adminisb:ator 
Animal Care 

Potential Violation: 9 C.F.R. parts 2 and/or 3 {see background 
infonnatiou) 

Person(s) refeniug for investigation: 

Customer #: 852 
Liceuse/Regis1ration No: 63-R~0006 
ra111e: University of Memphis 

Address: 365 Innovation Drive Memphis, TN 38 152 

Summary: 

Animal Care has documented serious critical noncompliances involving 
veterinary care, ventilation, and handling a1 the University of Memphis (MEMPlilS) 
faci lity .. MEMPHIS is registered as a Class «R'' research facility1 under the Animal 
Welfure Act (AW A). 

Bockgro1111d J11fon11ntio11: 

On August 22. 2022, A.nimal Ciu·e Veteriua.cy Medjc-al Officer Diana Care 
(CARE) conducted a routine inspection at MEMPHIS and cited three criticaJ 
noncompliances. 

l R.csCl'lrch facility nlNll.< any Kliool in.uilUtion, orgll.lliution. or pen.on dun 111,(S o r intcad.~ to u~ live ilru.mlll, in resc.irdl. len s, or 
~1, and lhal (l) porcbascs or ~ In~ l.llllllJals in commro:r. or ( 2) recQve> fund~ ,mcln ~ grao~. ~d. loan. o.r 
conuact from ad~ o1gency. or mstrumentalit)· of ihe United Sr.at~ for lhe purpo~ of canytQg out researclt. te~. or 
expmmews. 
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• 2.33(b)(3) Attending veterinarian & adequate veterinary care2 

On May 25, 2022, a vole was identified by a staff member to have a swollen, red, 
and hairless left front leg. The vole was not euthanizcd until June 23. 2022. There is no 
definitive infonnation to show exactly when the vole was observed by the AV and when 
euthanasia was advised. 

• 2.38(f)(J) Handling3 

Between July 19, 2022, and August 22, 2022, 15 mole rats were either found dead 
or were eutbanized due to meclical reasons. An internal investigation revealed a higher 
incidence of agitation and wounds from fighting. The investigation also discovered a 
light switch issue created an environment with continual 24-hour light within the room 
and found a humidifier had created additional noise. Both aggravating factors are 
believed to have caused stress and agitation, resulting in fighting and the related injuries 
and deaths. 

• 3.126{b) Facilities Indoor; ventilation4
. 

On April 2, 2022, an HV AC unit broke down resulting in decreased ventilation 
and increased ambient temperatures which consequently led to the deaths of 12 voles. 
The HV AC unit was repaired prior to the inspection and the inspector indicated a backup 
HVAC alann system has been installed. 

No other noncompliant items cited in the past three years. 

Concerns ond scope: 

The se1ious nature of these cri1ical noncompliances is very concerning to Animal 
Care. Animal Care requests JES investigate these documented noncompliances to 
dete1mine if they can be substantiated. 

2 § 2.33(bl(3) • Attending \'eterinarian and ade<111:ile vel.erinary r~ll'~. (b) Each research foci lityshnll cstabli,h ancl maimnin 
pmgram~ of adequate veterinary raro that ,include (3) Daily observation ufall mtimals to a.~;;ess their hoalth mul wcll•beiug: Provided. 
however. That daily obscr.intion of arumals mny be :icconit,lishcd lly someone other thitn the nit·cndi11g vcrcriuarian: and Proviclccl, 
furtht•r. That ~ merhani~m ol' dirert and fi"l!qu~m comrnunicution is n!quin!d so, that timely and .wcur.itt- infom1ati<.m on problem, or 
i111im;1I h~:thb. behavior. and wdl-bc1ni; ,~ conveyed lo tl1caucn(ling vetcrimirm11~ 

• ~ 2~'8(fl(lJ Handling. I fandling of' all ammals shal.l be done as cl(pcditiously and c:ardully a~ pos~iblc in ll m~1111cr tnal docb n.ut 
cause traumo, ,wcrhcanng. cxcc~sivc cooli11g, behavioral stress. physlcnl harm. (lr unnccc~$ary discomfon. 

• § .3.U6 • Fac:,Uitics, indoor. Ventilatio1~ Indoor huu~ing faciliti~~ ~hall b~ adequMely venti lat,•c.1 by natural or ml1chanic:al m~an~ to 
provide 1·or the health aitd to pttven1 (Jiscomrort oflhe ani111ol11 at illl ti,ues. Such fad1i1ie& shaJI be provided with t'rcsh oi, either by 
means ofwinclow~. doors. ven ts, fans, or oir,conditinning .1nd shall he ventilared son~ TO minimize dmfo. odors. ,md rnc,i~tu~ 
c@dC!lbilriun , 
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If additional information is discovered during the investigation that could 
substantiate other noncompliances with the Animal Welfare Act and its Regulations. 
notify the program point of contact listed below to discuss next appropriate steps. 

Prior History: 
None 

Attached is all relevant evidence that Animal Care collected in connection with the 
violation, specifica lly: 

• Inspection report 
• License application and certificate 

Veterinary Medical Officer 
Diana Care ( 662) 707-01 3 1 
diana.care@usda. aov 

Ael ing Supervisory Animal Care Specialist 
Eilis KaiT (978) 501 -4093 
eilis.karr@usda.gov 

If you have any questions about this request, please contact Jan FeJdmao at (240) 
461-9187 or ac.cas.maiJbox@usda.gov. 
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